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Tn 1860, the family bogan their slow northward =
pilgrimage. With drays and stock they journcyed north to
Rockhampton, then only a fow years old, The Colony of Queensland
had only just been formed and was attracting a stream of pioneers,

At Mt, Hedlow Station which the family ostablished, the father
passed away.

John Atherton was anxious to push further north, out into
the unknown lands on the tracks of the gold prospectors, and
explorors 1like Edmund Kennody, the Jardine Brothers, and William Hann,

In 1873, whon the gold rush to the Palmer broke out, he
started off with a mob of cattle to sell to the diggers, and to
explore some of the country for himself, His intorests were in land
and stock, and goldmiring had no appeal to him.

His brothers settlod in the Bowen distriet, but John took
a fancy to the Upper Burdekir-Herbert River headwaters. He had
married and now had a family.

In Jamuery 1875, he again rode north with fifteon hundred
head of eattle and two bullock drays. Mrs, Atherton and the children
joined him in Townsvilla.

The pioncers were a month erossing the jungle-covered range
behind Cardwell, and floods delayed them on the Herbert.
Tohn Atherton then took up Basalt Downs (Cashmere) on the old tele-
graph line from Cardwsll to the Gulf.

But the 1lwre of strange — and perhaps better - country still
further north was awakened in Atherton when J.V. Mulligan made known
his discoveries of mid - 1875 - the Hodgkinson Ri¥or, the Barron, the
groatun-ramed Tableland ab its head, the Wild River, and all the fine
unoccupied eountry through which thesc rivers flowod.
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When the Hodrkinson gold rush broke oub in March 1876,
itherton could contain his reostlessness no longer. A young plonedr
named John Fraser had alroady brought a thousand head of cattle over
tho coastal ranges and ridden rorth to the Mitchell River hoadweters
and taken up 2 vast arca of cattle land doop in the wilderness.

On an exploring journcy, Atherton tock up all the country
between Fraser's run south to the jungle—covered Tablelands, east
to the coastal jungle, and west beyond the Barron River.

He then sold Basalt Downs to McDowall of Kangaroo Hill Sl
loaded the family possessions on two bullock waggons and a buggys
ard with a small mob of cattle, sobt out on the northern track.



s

Following up the Wild River, they turned westerly
over rough ranges near where Watsonville was later situsted, and
came on to a western water, the Walsh River. They missod the rough
country around where Herberton now is. Also there was no scrub %o

contend with which was o complete barrier to wheeled vehicles until
a road was made.

In rough basalt country covered in long sweet grass they
came to the swiftly flowing Barron River,

When Mulligan had first seen it, he thought it was the
Mitchell, William Smith, John Doyle, and the Mounted Police, trying
to find a routec to the coast from the Hodgkinson, scon found it to bo
a Ef‘h& river altogether, It was named aftor a pollce offieial in
Br no.
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Wherce Emorald Creck - a beautiful running creek of clear
water - reccived the Barron, John Atherton built his slab homestead.
Ho named his etation Emerald End - of the EER brand, well kmown to
old timers.

Gairns and Port Dougles had only just been founded. The
country surrounding the Atherton homestead wes a little-known domain,
and the aborigines were hostile.

Seores of Atherton's cattle were speared, and secking them
far and wide ovor the Barron and Clohesy valleys, he carried his 1life
in his hands,

L tomehewk thrown from ambush one almost put finis to
Ltherton!s carcer; he carricd the scar until the day of his death.
A hill northwost of Tolga, called Bones Knob, is a grim reminder
of the revenge the early pioneers took on the dusky inhabitants -
for thosc werc grim and dangorous days.

The old homestead - still standing and occupled - withstoc
a terrific cyclone in 1878 which devastated Cairns and Smithficlds

Thet yoar a tclograph line was erected along the Smithfield
Track, and at the crossing of the Barren (Biboohra) was situated the
Athorbons! first neighbours — the Waldrons, Reoiins and McCords. A
fow miles to the northwost, on the extreme headwaters of the Mitchell,
was Baan Bero, the Native Mounted Police Camp. Tt was thon in charge
of Sub-Inspoctor Douglas. From this fortified post, the black
troopers frequently sallied forth to "disperse" the hostile tribes.
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John Atherton, the expert bushman, noted landmarks with
an explorer!s oye, and his namings have cndured - Shanty Crook, 4
Granitc Creck, Mt. Twiddler, Kate Sugarloaf, Tichum Creek, Cobra = 4
(Cobbera) Creck, Tinaroo ote,

Tinaroo is roputed to have got its mamc when Athorion
oxeitedly called out to his mate, Jim Robson, "Tin - hurroo" whon
ho found the metal in his prospecting dish.

4 minor rush sot in, end the ways began to change. To this
tinficld in the scrub came John Newoll and Williem Jack, carrying
their swags — as miners always did in those days - from the Hodgkinson.

When thoy found the Great Northern tin lode in April 1880,
on the Wild River, a great rush begen, and the towm of Herberton
sprang up.
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Overnight, civilisation came to Emerald End. It would be
loncly no longer. Turning off the Port Douglas - Hodgkinson road
which veored away to the west around the Granite Range somo miles
north of the Athcrton homestead, oxcited travellers flocked to
Herberton, crossing Granite Crock almoet within sight of the Atherton
homestead.

Thoy followed in the weke of Christy Palmorston, Mullins,
and Melean, who blazed the way to Horberton.

From Emorald End, John Atherton sew the dust of their
pessing.

By the eddying pools and lush #1lats of Granite Croek, tho
carricrs and packers who followed the rush lingered awhile, the din
of their horse and bullock bells and the flickering gleam of a score
of campfircs cleaving tho solitude of the bush.

This spot, half way botweon Port Douglas and Herberion, was
a convenicnt camping place.

Quickly, in the manner of the times, camo passenger laden
medil coaches - first run by Murphy and Macdonald, thon by Cobb & Co.

ilthough only a rough bush track, the Herberton roaed soon
bocamo as busy as a highway.

For the convenience of the coseh travellers and the -
hundrods who streamed along the dusty boulder=strewn track twisting
botween the bloodwood trees, in the early months of the year 1880,

John Athorton built a little steep-gabled wido—verandahed shanty and
rost housc on the high south bank of Granite Creck, right at the
erossing.
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Eecles and Lloyd conducted this business, and so those
familics beeame tho first citizons of the town of Merccba. Bub
sg far it was only known as the Granite Creck Coach Change.

A11 arcund was a waste of groy-green bush and heaps of
basalt bouldcrs among the tall speargrass.
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Pert of the history of the North cnfolde the old Granite
Crcok Coach Change of the "roaring 'eighties.

A trevellor riding in from Thornberough or cme of the other
bustling mining towns on the Hodgkinson would sce the rooftops of
the roadside shanty, and perhaps of John Atherton's homostead, among
the troctops, from onc of the ridges. Away in the distance towards
the north in the shimmering heat haze of the dry season, there would
bo a moving cloud of dust - & coach coming in frem Port Douglas.

From the verandah of Eccles and Lloyd's hotel,onc looked
along a rough bush track to the south - it is Byrnes Street today.
Teams would bo turned out along the creck, saddle horses would be
standing along the hitehing rails.

Cobb & Co's coach would be coming in from Herberton; perhaps
Bi1l McDonald or Jack Warner would be driving. The coach would
come in with 2 cloud of rod dust, lathercd horses, jingle of harness,
and ereak of bodywork on leather thoroughbraces.

The elothos of the bearded driver and his passengors would
be covored in dusti with a swish of skirts lady passongers would
cross the rough verandah with its flooring of pit-sawn boards in
quost of tee and cordirls, whilo the mon crowded into the bar.

Thoy would talk of many things - new names, new places, of
mines and teems, and newly-blazed tracks. Tac miners, teamsters,
bushworkers, eattlomen and travellers = roughly dressed and bearded,
the nir recking with Derby tobacec - would talk cbout the new and
exeiting discoveries in this raw now land in the making.

The Grenite Creock Coach Change hns vanished into history,
but memorics of those days hove beoon handod down - the days of
Cobb & Co, the packers, and the tcamsters. Granite Creck was o
meoting place for the people of that era, and on important stage on
tho long rough track that ran from Port Douglas to Herborton and
right on over the ranges tec Croydon in the far Gulf Country = o
road that once echoed to the rattle of coach whoole and rumble of
laden teams.
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Tn 1886, =nd for the noxt seven years, o railway wns
¢limbing the constal range from Cairne towards Granite Creck. In
anticipation of its coming, surveyor Alfred Starcke leid out a few
township blocks on the north bank of Granite Creck, in 1887,

With tho arrival of the railway from Cnirns in August 1893,
it bocame the town of Marceba.

John Atherton wntehed it grow rapidly. He played o
prominent part in the early life of the township, as well as
contributing to its devclopment,

His son, William, when he formed Chillagee Station in the
tnincties, had noted tho oxistenee of copper there, and so was
partly rosponsible for the founding of that town alsc. The building
of the Chillagoe Railway placed Mereeba on o sound foobing, and it
has never looked back,

Tn the carly days of Marecba, old John Atherton, rod-shirted
and bearded, wos a familiar figurc. Among other things, hec was
president of the Turf Club in 1908.

During his 1lifetime he saw the town of Athorton carved from
virgin jungle, the rallway constructed to it, and cxtended to
Herberton in 1910.

The old pioncer died in 1913, after scme 37 years' rosidence
ot Emerald End. He wns buricd thore beside his wife, who had died in
1902,

John Atherton, the founder of Marecbe, played o wvalusble
pert in the development of North Quecnsland, He is worthy of this
£ine momument in the town he helped to establish so long 8g0

For years his son E.A. ("Paddy") Atherton reopresented the
Tablelands in the Queensland Parliament, and he was Ministor for
Mines at onoe timec. He did his sharc of piongering also. Ho passed
away about throe years ago and was 1aid to rost in the family

aveyard at Emerald End. Only onc son, and one daughter of John
Athorton are still living.



MAREEBA, THE TOWN THAT STARTED AS A COACH CHANGE.

Poople who had followed the railwey from camp to camp
through the construction years, and those who came from Port Douglas
as the coach roads shortoned as the Iron Horse advanced, all ceme
to Marocbaj they constituted some of the townls first citizens,

On the high bank of the eroek ncar tho coach change, its
picnecrs were laid to rest in the coaching days. On the odge of
the present strect, under a gnarled frangipenni troe, are tha

graves of Mrs, Eceles, and one dated March 1886 is thet of o
Honry MeCrchan,

Tt wes Survoyor Rankin who survoyed the mucleus of the
present town - three long stroots and seven cross streets. Some of
thom perpetunte the names of early pionecrs - Eceles, Lloyd,
Middlemiss, Atherton, Hort and Walsh. Rankin Street was named after
the surveyor himself.

Some confusion oxists after whom tho main strect, Byrncs
Strcet, is nmamed. Onc school of thought suggests that it should be
"Byrnes" Strect and that it was named after Thomas Joseph Byrmes,
Promier of Queensland in the 'nineties, whilc another asserts it
was nemed after Peter Byrne, & local publican and later of Chillagoe.
That it was named aftor the promier scems the most 1likely conelusion.

Other pioneers were honored in street nomes as the town
expanded, and this practise is still continuing,
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In imeginetion we will wandor down thet part of tho old
Horborton Rond that became Byrncs Street in the 'ninoties before tho
days of the Chillagoe Rallway - & stroot one mile in length, hot,
bare and dusty in the dry scason, muddy and undrained in the wet.

On the railwny side of the atroet was Gates! saddler's shop,
Potor Berglund, bootmaker, Albert May, cabinctmaker, and Jacobsen's
wotchmaker's shop. At the top end of the rallwey rescrve wes Ferwick'!s
blacksmith's shop. All the other bulldings faced west towmrds the
railvay station. Mr. Courtnoy wes the first station-master.

The post offico was situated at the railway station until
1897 whon it was orectcd on its presont site. The presont brick

building dates only from 1951, Mr. Melood was Morccbats first
postmastor,
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Starting from the northern or Granite Creck end of the
strect, there was first the Royal Mail Hotel of Beeles and Lloyd,
where Michacl Walsh 1ived in the 'ninetics. There was the Termimus
Hotol, the sceond hotel built in Merocba, first kept by Paskin,
lateor by Fitzgerald. It was an overnight stop for Roed McCrae's
ecoaches before the railwey came.

Thon there was John Walsh's store and bekery, Soo Chin's
store , and W. Dickson's bakery. Thon there was Nerris! blacksmith
shop and W, Middlemiss! butchory ( later bought by Munro & Gordon,
and a butchory is still conducted thore).

Hoxh wans Mick Carrollls Carricr's irms Hotcl of onc storey
on the corncr, The old time building wes destroyed by fire in 1952,
apd a vory modern hotel now ceccupics the site. On the opposite
corner was Tom Dillon's two-storicd Mining Exchange Hotel (now the
Groat Northorn) :

The tuildings were now closer packed for then, as now,
this was the main busimoss scetien of Marocba.

Parcs wes an auctioncor and commisgion agont.  Next deor
was the Bank of North Queonsland ( M. Gabriel, menngoer); “the School
of Lrts (lator shifted to Walsh Strogt)s a Chincse store; Meyer & Co's
gonoral storo, and Huntor's produco stere. Some of these original
buildings still stend, but arc rapidly beoing replaced by modern
structuros of brick and concretec.

In this soction was the officc of Marocbals first nowspaper
"Tho Express®, printed and published by Octave Lannoy from Port
Douglas. Mr. G.H. 0'Donnell later bought the printory and issued the
"Marocbe Horald", This was followed by the "Walsh and Tinarco Miner"
in the first deeade of this contury, producced in co-pperation with
Hed Martin.

Noxt door was Jimmic Richard's barbor's shop, & Chinesc
store, Smith's drapery shop (1ater kopt by H. Castor), Danks! chomist
shop, Byrnc and Callaghan's butchory, Petor Byrne's store amd his
Imperial Hotel - 1ator burnt down. Dunlop's Hotel is its modern
counterpart. [ndy Dunleop camc from Mungana.

Whore Wilson's big drapcry store now stands there was &
Chinesc shop in the 'ninctics, and on the site of the National Bank,
on the corner, was an unfinished building known as "Hart's Folly".

On the opposite corner, 2 building which was & landmark in
Mercoba for sixty —throc yoars = Jack & Nowell's big gonoral storc-
has rocently been demolished and 2 fine brick building has boon
oroctod. The original building was put up by W. Hastic in 1893, (he
also built the reilway station which gtill stands). Mr. Love was
Jack & Nowcllls first mapager.
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The first conecrcte building in the towm wos Mr. Arther
Costin's chomist shop. 1In the 'nincties, Walsh & Co's gencral
storo was on this sitc, it wos burnt dowm lator.

Noxt docr was Scherning's saddler's shop, Dan Collins,
tentmaker, thon Walton's Fodoral Hotel (shifted te Cairns during
Wortd War 1.) This hotcl was the headguarters of Cobb & Co. from
1893 to 1903. The Railway Hotel (now the Hotel Marcoba) was kept
by Mrs. Strattmann in the carly days,

Oppositc was vacant ground - tho camping ground of the
ecarriers. Big horse sales were held hore by Arthur Garbutt and
Fred Drew in the 'ninctics. On the Rankin Streot corner was the
old Court House and police stetion; the latter was later moved to
Walsh Strect, and the old Court Housc, since demolished, served ~
as an ordnance store for the United States frmy in 1942, Marocbals
first poliecman was Scrgeant Orr.

S8ituated on the preoscent site of Mr, lawson's homo was the
Royal Hotel, later demolished. Some of the material wes used to
build the present Royrl Hotel in the centre of the town. Beyond
this hotel, sixty yeaors ago, stretched the primeval bush and the
rutted coach road to Horberton and beyond.

There wore & fow scattered homos in Walsh and Constance
Strects whore lived the Pares, Vaughans, Mclaughlins, Jennings,
Troughtons, Pctcrsens, Whites, Mays, Hardakers, Cummings, Hampes,
Wilkinaons, Heorts, Dowds, and others. The State School was opened
on August 9, 1893. Demnis Horan was the first head teacher,

Gold was discovered on Tinaroo Creck (the Marcecba Goldfield)
by Duncan Finlayson in 1893. The discovery coinelded with tho
arrival of the reilway at Marccba, and desplite the financial
doprossion raging st that time, the towm contlnued to prosper.

In 1897, meatworks werc established at Biboohra. Bill
Smallwood was the first manager. Grazicrs thon received an average
of 7/6 por 100 1bs. for prime beef. HNear tho railway station,

E.C. Earl built trucking yards.

The Chillagoe Mining Co. began construction of the Chillagoo
Railway in 1899, nnd it was completed in 1901. It helped the growth
of Marccba. Some of the old time railway men were Harry Fuelling,
Bill Garthunite, Mick Woods ( later M.L.A. for Woothakata) Morrow Bros.
Sam Camoron, Jim Riordan, Ralph Hastic, Bill Gee and Darby Ricrdan
(later M,L.A.) Paddy McDermott and irthur Hastic were traffic managers.
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in 1903, thc town became & busy railway junction, for in
that yoar the constructicon of the Herberton railwey was resumed,
and upon its completion, the picturesqgue mail coachcs wvanished forever.
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